
Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

 Willamina City Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, March 12, 2019, 6:00 pm 

West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St. 

Willamina, OR 97396 

  

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL  

FLAG SALUTE 

AGENDA ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, AND CORRECTIONS  

PUBLIC INPUT – BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE  

Public Input: Presentations not scheduled on the Agenda are limited to three (3) minutes. 
Longer presentations should be submitted to the City Recorder before the meeting. 
Anyone wishing to comment on an item of the Regular Agenda will need to sign in on the 
sign in form. 

CORRESPONDENCE - none 

PRESENTATIONS  

1. Homeward Bound Pets - Ronnie Votinak, Executive Director 
2. Yamhill County Transit – Cynthia Thompson, Transit Manager 
3. Juliette's House - Carole Joa 
4. Mud Drags – Sherry Dawkins 

 
CONSENT AGENDA   “(A listing of routine business items, which are adopted with one 
motion, without discussion. However, any COUNCILOR may request that an item be pulled 
from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action. The item is then not 
considered after the Consent Agenda items have been voted upon).” 

5. Check Registers – January 1 to 31, 2019 (information only) 
6. Financials January 31, 2019 
7. Minutes from the February 12, 2019 City Council Meeting 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

1

1



Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

8. Lease of Parking Lot for City Library Use 
9. Cemetery Savers 
10. Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee Appointments 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (Items that require no Council action) - none 

MAYORS REPORT 

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

11. Cemetery Committee Liaison (Councilor Baller) 
12. Chamber Liaison (Councilor Wooden) 
13. Library Liaison (Councilor Lawson) 
14. YCOM Board (Councilor Baller) 
15. Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member (Councilor Johnson) 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS FROM CITY OFFICERS 

16. City Manager 
17. Sheriff’s Report 

 
EVENT CALENDAR- Informational 

 
 

 

 

2

2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

3

3



4

4



5

5



6

6



7

7



8

8



9

9



10

10



11

11



12

12



13

13



14

14



15

15



16

16



17

17



18

18



19

19



20

20



21

21



22

22



23

23



24

24



25

25



26

26



27

27



28

28



29

29



30

30



31

31



32

32



33

33



34

34



35

35



36

36



37

37



38

38



39

39



40

40



41

41



42

42



43

43



44

44



45

45



46

46



47

47



48

48



49

49



50

50



51

51



1 
 

February 12, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

City of Willamina 
City Council Minutes Regular Meeting 

February 12, 2019 
6:00 PM 

  
Location of Meeting: 
West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97132 
  
Present at Meeting: Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Council President Rita Baller 
Councilor April Wooden 
Councilor Craig Johnson 
Councilor Bob Burr 
City Manager Kenna West 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
Public Works Director Jeff Brown 
Guest: (not limited to:) 
News-Register Reporter Paul Daquilante 
Polk County Sheriff Mark Garton 
Yamhill County Mediators Retired Executive Director Marlena Bertram 
Yamhill County Mediators Executive Director Chuck Pattishall 
 
Absent from Meeting:  
Councilor Roberta Lawson 
Councilor James Daley 
  
The regular meeting of the City Council of City of Willamina was called to order 
at 6:00 PM on February 12, 2019 at West Valley Fire Station by Mayor Ila Skyberg. 
  

I. Approval of Agenda 
  
The agenda for the meeting was distributed and unanimously approved.  
  

II. Review of Previous Minutes 
  
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and unanimously approved. 
  

III. Consideration of Open Issues 
  

1. Agenda Additions, Deletion, And Corrections 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 

 Mayor Skyberg announced the following additions to the agenda: 
1. Willamina Historical Cemetery Applications 
2. Willamina Budget Committee Application 

52

52



2 
 

February 12, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

  
2. Public Input 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg invited Sherry Dawkins to speak who signed in under public 
input.  
 
Sherry introduced a flyer for the Council and handed it to the Deputy City 
Recorder.  
 
The Flyer announced the Willamina Mud Drags held on June 1, 2019 and 29, 
2019. Sherry said she was present on behalf of the fundraiser for the Willamina 
4th of July Fireworks Committee. She asked the Council for permission to use 
City property for the Mud Drags. City Manager Kenna West commented that she 
was under public input and no decision could be made by the City Council at that 
time. 

 
  

5. Presentations 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg welcomed Polk County Sheriff Mark Garton. Sheriff Garton 
thanked the Council for allowing him to make a presentation and bring them up to 
date on the Polk County Sheriff’s Office. Sheriff Garton reviewed the prior year’s 
activity. Sheriff Garton also provided the City Council with updated information on 
the upcoming Public Safety Levy in Polk County.  After completion of his 
presentation, Sheriff Garton requested the City’s support in regard to this Levy. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to support the Levy. Councilor Burr seconded 
the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, Baller, Johnson, and Burr all 
in favor.   
 
Mayor Skyberg requested Marlena Bertram, Interim Executive Director from Your 
Community Mediators of Yamhill County, to speak next. Marlena presented 
copies of their fiscal year 2017-18 City of Willamina statistical summary report to 
the Deputy City Recorder for the Council. The report reviewed the case type, 
number of cases, number of Willamina residents served by mediation, 
operational staff expense, and volunteer valuation rate. Ms. Bertram then asked 
for the support of $1, 000 donation. Further, Ms. Bertram explained that she is 
retiring. New Director, Chuck Pattishall, introduced himself and provided a 
summary of his prior experience. 
  
   

6. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg requested the Council President read the items on the consent 
agenda. Councilor Baller read the following:   
 

53

53



3 
 

February 12, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

 1) Check Registers from December 1 to 31, 2018 
 2) Financials from December 31, 2018 
 3) Minutes from the January 8, 2019 City Council Meeting and 
 4) Annual Liquor License renewals 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to approve the Consent. Councilor Johnson 
seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, Baller, Johnson, 
and Burr all in favor.  
  

7. City Council Vacancy 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated, "Shall the City Council declare the City of Willamina City 
Councilor office held by James Daley to be vacant and move forward with the 
nomination/appointment of someone else to fill the vacant office?" 
 
MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to declare the office held by Councilor Daley as 
vacant.  Councilor Johnson seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors 
Wooden, Baller, Johnson, and Burr all in favor.  
 
Mayor Skyberg asked if there were any nominations from Council.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to nominate Theresa McKnight to the 
vacant position. Councilor Baller seconded the motion. Motion carried with 
Councilors Wooden, Baller, Johnson, and Burr all in favor.  
 
The Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard read a letter of interest in serving on 
the Council from Theresa.  
  
Budget Committee Appointments 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated, "Shall the Mayor and City Council appoint Laurie Toney, 
Vern Holstad, Phillip Lybarger, Katie Vinson, and Craig Kruchok to fill the vacant 
seats on the City of Willamina Budget Committee?” 
 
MOTION: Councilor Johnson moved to appoint Laurie Toney, Vern Holstad, 
Phillip Lybarger, Katie Vinson, and Gregg Kruchok to serve on the Budget 
Committee. Councilor Baller seconded the motion.  Motion carried with 
Councilors Wooden, Baller, Johnson, and Burr all in favor.  
 

8. Budget Officer Appointment 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated, "Shall the City Council approve the City Manager as the 
Budget Officer for the 2019-2020 Budget?" 
 

54

54



4 
 

February 12, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to appoint City Manager Kenna West as Budget 
Officer. Councilor Wooden seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors 
Wooden, Baller, Johnson, and Burr all in favor.  
  

9. Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee Appointments  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated, "Shall the City Council appoint Joel Boyce and Charlene 
Brown to the Cemetery Committee?" 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to appoint Joel Boyce and Charlene Brown to 
the Cemetery Committee. Councilor Wooden seconded the motion. Motion 
carried with Councilors Wooden, Baller, Johnson, and Burr all in favor.  
  

10. Business License Fees - Resolution 18-19-012 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated, "Shall the City Council approve Resolution No. 18-19-012 
adjusting the City of Willamina annual business license fee?" 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to approve Resolution 18-19-012 adjusting 
the business license fee to $75.00 per year. Councilor Johnson seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, Baller, Johnson, and Burr all in 
favor.  
  

11. Economic Improvement District; Approved Budget, Election of Officers, And       
Request for Update 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated “Shall the City Council approve the nominees for the 
Economic Improvement District (EID) Advisory Committee as presented to the 
Council and accept the Annual Financial Report submitted by the EID Treasurer? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Johnson moved to approve the nominees presented by the 
EID for the Advisory Board, to accept the EID annual Financial Report, and to 
authorize the City Manager to allocate staff time, as she deems appropriate, to 
research, review and respond to the EID request. Councilor Wooden seconded 
the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, Baller, Johnson, and Burr all 
in favor. 
  

12. Public Hearing - Public Hearing on Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 
2018/2019 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg closed the Regular Session at 7:05 pm and opened the public 
hearing.  
Mayor Skyberg read the public hearing script. She asked for comments from the 
those present. There were none. She asked for comments from the Council. 
There were none.  

 

55

55



5 
 

February 12, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

The Mayor then closed the Public Hearing and reopened the Regular Session. 
 
Mayor Skyberg stated "Shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-013 
adopting a supplemental budget that includes three new line items, increases the 
adopted budget to allow receipt of grant revenues and planning fee revenues that 
were not anticipated in the adopted budget and expenditure of this unanticipated 
revenues; an increase in wastewater capital outlay, and reallocation of various 
other line items contained with the adopted budget?” 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden move to approve Resolution 18-19-013 adopting a 
supplemental budget and allowing reallocations within Funds to the adopted 
budget.  Councilor Burr seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors 
Wooden, Baller, Johnson, and Burr all in favor.   

  
IV. Informational Reports 

  
13. Mayor Report 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg asked for a count of those attending the City-County Dinner in 
Dundee. Kenna noted this event is a day after the COG Dinner.  
Mayor Skyberg attended the Elected Officials workshop on Jan 23, 2019. She 
also attended the Polk County Elected Officials Breakfast on the 25th where they 
were still discussing the 3rd bridge in Salem. The Mayor heard today they would 
not be moving forward with the 3rd bridge. Also, she and the City Manager 
attended the Yamhill County Housing Summit. She attended a Historical 
Cemetery Committee yesterday, and from that, it was decided that Councilor 
Baller would be appointed as the Cemetery Committee Liaison for the City 
Council. 
  

14. Council Liaison Reports - Cemetery Committee Liaison  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Councilor Baller reported on the January 2019 Cemetery Committee and 
indicated Charlene Brown is working on a visitor’s pamphlet. They talked about 
the Polk County Cemetery Savers who gave a presentation to Council in 
January. Councilor Baller referred to the presentation last month and said she is 
excited for the Willamina Cemetery and the work that will be done. The 
Committee also reviewed the Cemetery Rules and Regulations and last put out 
an advertisement for new Cemetery Committee members. 
  

15. Chamber Liaison (Councilor Wooden) 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Councilor Wooden reported the Chamber is working on “Goose” Security; Jeff 
Brown and Ginny Wymore are working on covering the windows. They are still 
waiting for a location on the new welcome sign to be placed out by Highway 22. 
Carrie Zimbrick reported updates to the Chamber on the High School. There are 
870 students this year, and all class sizes are under 25. 

56

56



6 
 

February 12, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

 
16.  YCOM Board (Councilor Baller) 

 Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 Councilor Baller said they did not have a quorum last month and no meeting.  
 

17.  Library Liaison (Councilor Lawson) 
 Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 Councilor Lawson was absent. 
  

18.  Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member (Councilor Johnson) 
 Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Councilor Johnson reported that one of the main priorities for the Transit 
Authority is to work with local businesses in McMinnville to make sure the riders 
are safe. They have been talking to the Manager of Winco to bring the bus 
closer to their door for the safety of the passengers. Also, the Shopper shuttle is 
being tested. 

  
19. City Managers Report 

The City Manager reported that at the Elected Officials Essentials Training, 
Madam Mayor was asked to be on the presentation panel due to another 
speaker’s inability to attend.  Mayor Skyberg did a wonderful job!.  
 
The City Manager reported that staff had been very busy at City Hall. Also, she 
has been working on a shared tour with the Grand Ronde Tribe for March 11, 
2019 when the Tribe will tour the City of Willamina. There is a proposed luncheon 
at the Museum for a visit. Then the City of Willamina will tour Grand Ronde on 
March 15, 2019.  
 
Kenna updated the Council on new businesses coming in which are a resale 
store called Shyla Renovations, and of course the Dollar General.  
 

20. Sheriff’s Report 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
City Manager Kenna West commented on the Sheriff’s Report. She wanted to 
bring to the Council’s attention the reduction in crime numbers. Larceny was 
down 92%, and vandalism was down 88%.  She said these are impressive 
numbers and related the decline in numbers to the new drug dog.   
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to adjourn at 8:10 PM. Councilor Baller 
seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, Baller, Johnson 
and Burr all in favor.  
  

V. Agenda and Time of Next Meeting 
  

The next meeting will be held on March 12, 2019 at 6:00 PM at:  
 

57

57



7 
 

February 12, 2019 City Council Minutes 
 

West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97132 

  
The meeting was adjourned at 8:10 PM by Mayor Ila Skyberg. 
  
Minutes submitted by:  
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Minutes approved by Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 

58

58



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF MARCH 12, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: KENNA WEST, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: LEASE OF PARKING LOT FOR CITY LIBRARY USE 
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall City Council approve the lease agreement attached hereto as Attachment A and authorize 
the City Manager to sign on behalf of the City? 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the lease agreement and authorize the City 
Manager to sign on behalf of the City. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
For many years the City of Willamina Library has been using the lot adjacent to the building as a 
parking area for the Library.  That lot is owned by R. Burr Holdings, LLC.  The Library’s use has 
been with the approval of R. Burr Holdings, LLC and without cost to the City of Willamina. 
 
Recently, there have been a number of vehicles which are unrelated to Library matters, parking 
in this lot.  This has reduced the available parking for Library patrons.  Because this is a non-city 
owned or leased property, there is little that the City’s Community Support and Code 
Enforcement Officer can do to alleviate these parking issues. 
 
Further, there have periodically been junk or dismantled vehicles which appear in this lot that 
not only take up Library patron parking, but are unsightly.  Although, there is a process for the 
private landowner to work with the City for removal of these unsightly vehicles, it takes 
approximately 30 days and leaves the Library parking area unsightly and with reduced space for 
patron parking during that time frame.  
 
In order to bring this parking lot within the auspices of the City’s enforcement capacity and 
formalize the agreement between the City and R. Burr Holdings, LLC, the City’s contract 
attorney has prepared the attached lease agreement. 
 
The lease agreement provides that the City may utilize the property for Library parking only, will 
maintain the property at the sole discretion of the City, will pay a nominal $42.00 per month rent 
to R. Burr Holdings, LLC, and the City will have exclusive control of the property except for the 
placement of up to three garbage/recycle cans by R. Burr Holdings, LLC. 
 
Once the lease agreement is in effect, the City of Willamina Community Support and Code 
Enforcement Officer will have the ability to immediately cite those vehicles parked in the lot that 
are not either Library patrons or Library staff and have them towed in a much quicker time 
frame.  In this way, City Management hopes to eliminate those vehicles parked in this lot that 
are not there on Library business. 

59

59



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of March 12, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 
 
1. There has recently been an increase in the number of vehicles which are unrelated to 

Library matters parked in the lot next to the Library.  This lot is owned by R. Burr 
Holdings, LLC and has been used by the Library for parking purposes for a number of 
years without cost to the City. 

 
2. The vehicles parked in the lot have reduced the parking capacity for Library patrons.  In 

addition, some vehicles have been either dismantled or “junk” vehicles which are 
unsightly in addition to reducing the parking capacity for Library patrons. 

 
3. Because the parking area is privately owned and not city-owned or city-leased, the City’s 

Community Support and Code Enforcement Officer is constrained in his enforcement 
abilities. 

 
4. In order to bring this parking lot within the control of the City and to allow enforcement of 

City parking laws, smoking laws, among others, the City requested our contract attorney 
to prepare an appropriate lease between the City and R. Burr Holdings, LLC. 

 
5. The proposed lease is attached hereto as Attachment A and contains both a description 

and a map of the property being leased by the City.  The lease is for a five year period, 
which auto-renews each year unless one of the parties provides notice of non-renewal 
within 30 days prior to the auto renewal date. 

 
6. The rental rate is $504.00 annually, to be paid on a monthly basis in the sum of $42.00.  

This is approximately the County tax on the property, and is considered reasonable by 
City Management. 

 
Proposed Motion: I move for approval of the attached lease agreement and to authorize the 

City Manager to sign on behalf of the City. 
 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Kenna L. West, City Manager 
 
Attachment: 

A. Parking Lot Lease with attachments 
 

60

60



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

61

61



 
PARKING LOT LEASE 
R. BURR HOLDINGS, LLC AND CITY OF WILLAMINA 
Page 1 
 
 
 
 

PARKING LOT LEASE 
CITY OF WILLAMINA AND R. BURR HOLDINGS, LLC 

 
This Lease Agreement (“Agreement” or “Lease”) is between the R. Burr Holdings, LLC 
(“Lessor”) and the City of Willamina (“Lessee” or “City”) and is dated this ________ day of 
March, 2019. 

RECITALS 

A. Lessor owns land as described herein, and as more particularly set forth in Exhibit A: 
Taxlot R6701DA01400, Block 3 Lot 6; and R6701DA01000, Block 3 Lot 2 (the 
“Property”).  The combined square foot area is 6,654.72 sq.ft. 

B. Lessee wishes to lease the Property for use as a parking lot for the Willamina Public Library. 

C. Lessor and Lessee wish to enter into this Agreement under which Lessor will lease 
the property to Lessee. 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Property Description 

Lessor hereby leases to Lessee the Property.  Lessor does not lease any personal property 
as part of this Lease. 

2. Term and Renewal 

The initial term of this Lease runs from March 15, 2019, through March 15, 2020.  This 
Lease shall automatically renew for terms of equal length as the initial term, for up to four 
additional renewal terms, unless notice of non-renewal is provided in writing by either 
party to this Lease to the other party at least 30 days prior to completion of the then-
applicable term, and provided that neither party is in default under the terms of the Lease. 
Such notice shall be provided consistent with the terms of this Lease.   

3. Payment of Rent 

Lessee shall pay rent to Lessor at the rate of $504 annually, to be paid on a monthly basis 
in the sum of $42.00, due on or before the 15th day of each month. 

 

 
 

62

62



 
PARKING LOT LEASE 
R. BURR HOLDINGS, LLC AND CITY OF WILLAMINA 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 

4. Use of Property 

A. Lessee may only use the Property for patron parking for the Willamina Public 
Library.   

B. Lessee will maintain the property at its expense, which may include, at Lessee’s 
discretion, the placement of rock, grading of the parking lot, parking demarcation, 
placement of planters or other beautification. 

C. All maintenance of the Property by the City is at the sole discretion of the City, and 
is not required under the terms of this Lease.   

D. Lessee will not pave, tar, or asphalt the Property without Lessor’s prior written 
consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

E. Lessee has exclusive control of the Property during the duration of this Lease, 
with the exception that Lessor may place up to three (3) garbage or recycling cans 
on the property at its discretion. 

5. Assignment/Sublease 

Lessee may not sublet the Property or any part thereof and may not transfer or assign this 
Lease without obtaining the advance written consent of Lessor in each case.  Lessor’s 
consent may be granted or denied at Lessor’s sole discretion. Lessor retains the right to 
transfer the Property and has the option to assign this Lease to the transferee. 

6. Access to Property 

Lessor may access the Property as necessary to ensure compliance with this Lease. Lessor 
will use its best efforts not to interfere with Lessee’s use of the Property. 
 

7. Defaults  
A. Lessee's Default. The following are Events of Default: (i) Failure to pay the rent 

when due; (ii) Commencement of any proceedings under any bankruptcy or 
insolvency laws by or against Lessee; (iii) Abandonment by Lessee of the Property; 
(iv) Failure of Lessee to comply with any of the terms, conditions and covenants set 
forth in this Lease.  
 

B. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Lessor must provide Lessee with 
written Notice of Default specifying the nature of the default with reasonable 
particularity and directing Lessee to cure the default immediately. Within ten (10) 
days of Notice of Default, Lessee must either cure the default or provide Lessor with 
proof satisfactory to Lessor that Lessee will diligently complete a cure within thirty 
(30) days of the Notice of Default. If Lessee fails to provide satisfactory proof that 

63

63



 
PARKING LOT LEASE 
R. BURR HOLDINGS, LLC AND CITY OF WILLAMINA 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 

a cure will be completed or the default remains uncorrected thirty (30) days from 
the Notice of Default, Lessor may re-enter and re-take the Property or any part 
thereof without liability for damages, and may change the locks on any gates to the 
Property and exclude Lessee from the Property, in addition to any other remedies 
Lessor may have.  

 
8. Termination 

A. This lease may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days written notice 
to the non-terminating party at the addresses provided in Section 13, below. 
Upon termination, all outstanding rights and obligations of the parties under the 
terms of this Lease (including but not limited to Lessee’s obligation to pay rent) 
shall be discharged. 

B. The parties acknowledge that Lessor has the right to sell the Property prior to the 
scheduled Lease termination date. In the event Lessor chooses to sell the Property, 
Lessor may elect to assign this Lease to the purchaser. 

C. Upon termination of the Lease, Lessee shall restore the Property to the condition 
that existed prior to commencement of the lease within 30 days. Lessee may take 
in excess of 30 days to restore the Property if Lessor consents. Lessor's consent may 
not be unreasonably withheld. Lessor's consent must include a new time limit for 
the completion of Property restoration.  

9. Compliance with Laws, Regulations 

Lessee, at Lessee's sole expense, must comply with all laws, rules, orders, ordinances, 
directions, regulations, and requirements of federal, state, county and municipal authorities 
pertaining to Lessee's use of the Property and with all recorded covenants, conditions, and 
restrictions, regardless of when they become effective. These include, without limitation, 
any required alteration of the Property because of Lessee's specific use, and all applicable 
federal, state, local laws, regulations or ordinances pertaining to air and water quality, 
Hazardous Materials as defined in in this lease, waste disposal, air emissions and other 
environmental matters, and all zoning and other land use matters. 

10. Indemnity/Hold Harmless 

In addition to any other indemnifications set forth in this Lease, Lessee and Lessor both 
mutually agree to indemnify, defend and hold the other party, as well as its officers, 
employees, agents and representatives, harmless for, from, and against any and all claims, 
demands, losses, liabilities, penalties, and causes of action of any kind, including the cost 
of defense thereof and attorney fees, arising out of or relating to any activity of the 
indemnifying party or its agents, employees or invitees on the Property. 

64

64



 
PARKING LOT LEASE 
R. BURR HOLDINGS, LLC AND CITY OF WILLAMINA 
Page 4 
 
 
 
 

11. Hazardous Materials 

A. Use of Hazardous Materials Lessee shall not cause or knowingly permit any 
Hazardous Material to be brought upon, kept or used in or about the Property by 
Lessee, its agents, employees, contractors, or invitees without the prior written 
consent of Lessor. 

B. Hazardous Materials Indemnification Lessor shall indemnify, defend and hold 
Lessee and its officers, employees, agents and representatives harmless from any 
and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs, liabilities, or losses 
(including without limitation, diminution in value of the Property, attorneys' fees, 
consultant fees, and expert fees) that arise during or after the Lease term as a result 
of contamination by Hazardous Materials. This indemnification of Lessee by Lessor 
includes, without limitation, costs incurred in connection with any investigation of 
site conditions or any cleanup, remedial, removal or restoration work required by 
any federal, state, or local governmental agency or political subdivision because of 
Hazardous Materials present in the soil or ground water on or under the Property. 
Without limiting the foregoing, if the presence of any Hazardous Materials on the 
Property caused or permitted by the acts or omissions of Lessee or its agents, 
employees, contractors or invitees results in any contamination of the Property 
during the term of this Lease, Lessee shall promptly take all actions at its sole 
expense as necessary to return the Property to the condition existing prior to the 
release of any such Hazardous Material to the Property, provided that Lessor's 
approval of such actions shall first be obtained. The foregoing indemnity shall 
survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. 

C. Definition As used herein, the term "Hazardous Material" means any hazardous 
or toxic substance, material, or waste, including, but not limited to, those 
substances, materials and wastes listed in the United States Department of 
Transportation Hazardous Materials Table (49 CFR 172.101) or by the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency as hazardous substances (40 CFR Part 
302) and amendments thereto, ORS Chapter 465, petroleum products or such 
other similar substances, materials or wastes that are or become regulated under 
any applicable local, state, or federal law. 

12. No Liens on the Property 

A. Lessee will not suffer or permit any construction liens to attach to the interest of 
Lessee in all or any part of the Property by reason of any work, labor, services, 
or materials done for, or supplied to, or claimed to have been done for or 
supplied to, Lessee or anyone occupying or holding an interest in all or any part 
of the Improvements on the Property through or under Lessee. If any such lien 
at any time is filed against the Property, Lessee will cause the lien to be 

65

65



 
PARKING LOT LEASE 
R. BURR HOLDINGS, LLC AND CITY OF WILLAMINA 
Page 5 
 
 
 
 

discharged of record within 10 business days after the date of filing the same, 
by payment, deposit, or bond. 

B. Nothing in this Lease should be construed in any way as constituting the consent 
or request , express or implied, by inference or otherwise, to any person, firm, 
or corporation for the performance of any labor or the furnishing of any materials 
for any construction, rebuilding, alteration, or repair of or to the Property, or as 
giving any right, power, or authority to contract for or permit the rendering of 
any services or the furnishing of any materials that might in any way give rise 
to the right to file any lien against the Property. Lessor is not intended to be an 
agent of Lessee for the construction of in improvements on the Property. Lessee 
has the right to post and keep posted at all reasonable times on the Property any 
notices that Lessee is required to post. 

13. Notices 
 
Notices required by this lease must be in writing and are deemed given and received upon 
deposit in the United States mail, certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, addressed to the parties at their respective addresses listed herein. 

 
Notices to Lessor:    Notices to Lessee: 

 
R. Burr Holdings, LLC   City of Willamina 

 900 NE Main     attn: City Manager 
Willamina, OR  97396   411 NE C Street 

Willamina, Oregon 97396 
 
14. Time of Essence 
 

Lessee and Lessor hereby acknowledge and agree that time is strictly of the essence with 
respect to every term, condition, obligation, and provision. 

15. Waiver 

The waiver of one breach of any term, condition, covenant, obligation or agreement of 
this lease is not a waiver of that or any other term, condition, covenant, obligation or 
agreement or of any subsequent breach thereof. 

16. Final Contract/Binding Effect/Attorney Fees 

This document contains all of the terms and conditions of the parties' agreement. Any waiver 
or modification of the terms of this agreement must be writing. This agreement shall be 
construed so that the plural includes the singular and the singular includes the plural. This 

66

66



 
PARKING LOT LEASE 
R. BURR HOLDINGS, LLC AND CITY OF WILLAMINA 
Page 6 
 
 
 
 

agreement is binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns. The prevailing party in 
any lawsuit arising out of this agreement is entitled to attorney fees, costs and disbursements, 
both at trial and on appeal. 

 

 
R. Burr Holdings, LLC   CITY OF Willamina 

 
By: ___________________________  By: __________________________ 
 
Printed Name: __________________  Printed Name: __________________ 
 
Title: _________________________   Title: _________________________ 

 
 
          

67

67



CITY OF WILLAMINA  
STAFF REPORT 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF MARCH 12, 2019 
 

TO:    MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:   DEBBIE BERNARD, DEPUTY CITY RECORDER 

SUBJECT: PARTNERSHIP WITH THE POLK COUNTY CEMETERY 
SAVERS 

 

ISSUE  

Shall the City Council approve a partnership between the City of Willamina and the Polk County 
Cemetery Savers?  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council support a partnership between the City of Willamina and 
Polk County Cemetery Savers. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

At the January 8, 2019 City Council meeting Lloyd Collins with Polk County Cemetery Savers 
presented a proposal to partner with the City of Willamina to repair the Willamina Historic 
Cemetery headstones and markers. The Willamina Historic Cemetery was selected by the Polk 
County Cemetery Savers as the proposed site for a 2019 cemetery cleanup project.  
 
The Polk County Cemetery Savers are Cemetery Conservators and they conform to rigorous 
standards, precautions, inspections, and procedures for cleaning cemetery headstones and 
markers.   Mr. Collins explained that the City’s contribution to the partnership would include 8 to 
10 dedicated volunteers; two to three yards of crushed rock (½ inch minus with lots of fines), a 
portable toilet for the duration of work (about 10 to 12 weeks) placed next to a shed; a water 
supply at the cemetery, and a key to the vehicle gate. The project will include cleaning headstones 
and markers, raising flat markers to grade, and aligning and plumbing small markers.  The Polk 
County Cemetery Savers will supply the specialized cleaning fluids, but the City volunteers would 
need to supply their own cleaning equipment and shovels.  If the City Council approves the 
partnership, the work is scheduled to being on Saturday, July 27, 2019.  
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 

 
1. The City Council received a proposal from Lloyd Collins with the Polk County Cemetery 

Savers to join with them in a partnership to clean and repair the Willamina Historic 
Cemetery headstones and markers.  

 
2. The Polk County Cemetery Savers will provide the expertise and specialized cleaning 

fluids, and the City of Willamina will supply  8 to 10 dedicated volunteers, two or three 
yards of crushed rock, a portable toilet for the duration of work (about 10 to 12 weeks),  a 
water supply, and a key to the vehicle gate.  
 

68

68



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For the City Council Meeting of March 12, 2019 
 

3. If approved by the City Council, the work is scheduled to begin July 27, 2019.  
        

 ________________________________________  

            Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder  

 

 

69

69



CITY OF WILLAMINA  
STAFF REPORT 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF MARCH 12, 2019 
 

TO:    MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:   DEBBIE BERNARD, CITY RECORDER 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT TO CEMETERY COMMITTEE   

 

ISSUE  

Shall the Mayor appoint Meg Commerford, Mike Nolan, and Howard Alkire to fill the vacant 
seats on the City of Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee? 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Staff recommends that the Mayor appoint Meg Commerford, Mike Nolan, and Howard 
Alkire to fill the vacant seats on the City of Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee? 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

 
The Willamina Historic Committee was established by the Willamina City Council through 
Ordinance No. 677 on January 8, 2019. The City Council’s February 12, 2019 Regular Meeting 
the Mayor appointed 2 of the 7 members needed. The number of board members and 
qualifications for membership is set forth in Chapter 31 of the Willamina Code of Ordinances.  
 
The City has received applications of interest to join the Cemetery Committee from Meg 
Commerford, Mike Nolan, and Howard Alkire, to join the city of Willamina Historic Cemetery 
Committee. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 

1. The Willamina Historic Committee was established by Ordinance No. 677 on January 8, 
2019.   
 

2. Pursuant to the Willamina Code of Ordinances, Title lll, Chapter 31, §31.42 (A) The 
Committee shall consist of up to seven voting members appointed by the Mayor;   
 

3. The City has received applications to join the Cemetery Committee from Meg 
Commerford, Mike Nolan, and Howard Alkire. 
 

        

 ________________________________________  

            Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder   

Attachments: 

70

70



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For the City Council Meeting of March 12, 2019 
 
 
Applications for the Willamina Historic Cemetery Committee: 
     Meg Commerford 
     Mike Nolan 
     Howard Alkire 
      

 

 

 

71

71



72

72



73

73



74

74



    City     UCR Description 2/1/2018 to 
2/28/2018

2/1/2019 to 
2/28/2019

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Part 1

Aggravated Assault                 0 0 1 5

Arson                              1 0 4

Burglary-Business                  1 0 3

Burglary-Non-Residence             1 0 4

Burglary-Residence                 0 2 2 6

Larceny                            6 4 -33.33 % 10 67

Motor Vehicle Theft-Auto           0 2 2 3

Murder                             0 0 1

Rape                               0 0 2

Robbery                            0 0 1

Part 1 Total 9 8 -11.11 % 15 96

Part 2

All Other                          1 1 1 11

Animal Problems                    0 0 1

Disorderly Conduct                 3 2 -33.33 % 2 10

Drug Laws                          2 2 3 21

DUII                               2 0 4

Forgery                            0 1 1 5

Fraud                              0 0 1 1

Kidnapping                         0 0 1

Liquor Laws                        1 0 3

Runaway                            0 0 4

Sex Offenses                       1 0 5

Simple Assault                     1 3 200.00 % 7 36

Stolen Property                    0 0 1

Tresspass/Prowler                  0 1 1 14

Vandalism                          5 2 -60.00 % 6 33

Part 2 Total 16 12 -25.00 % 22 150

Total For WILLAMINA 41 37 -9.76 % 74 529

Report run date: 3/4/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 2/1/2019 to 2/28/2019

75

75



    City     UCR Description 2/1/2018 to 
2/28/2018

2/1/2019 to 
2/28/2019

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Part 3

All Other                          8 6 -25.00 % 17 101

Non-Reportable Offenses            8 11 37.50 % 20 182

Part 3 Total 16 17 5.88 % 37 283

Total For WILLAMINA 41 37 -9.76 % 74 529

Report run date: 3/4/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 2/1/2019 to 2/28/2019

76

76



   

January
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 01/01/19 (Tue) New Year's Day -City Hall is Closed holiday

1 2 3 4 5 01/01/19 (Tue) Planning Commission - Canceled holiday
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 01/8/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 01/21/19 (Mon) Martin Luther King Jr. Day - City Hall is Closed holiday
20 21 22 23 24 25 26    - 
27 28 29 30 31    - 

February
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 02/02/19 (Sat) Groundhog Day holiday

1 2 02/11/19 (Mon) Cemetery Committee Meeting meeting
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 02/12/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 02/12/19 (Tue) Lincoln's Birthday holiday
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 02/14/19 (Thu) Valentines Day holiday
24 25 26 27 28 02/18/19 (Mon) President's Day - City Hall is Closed holiday

02/19/19 (Tue) Library Board Meeeting meeting
 NO PLANNNG COMMISSION MTG FEB meeting
02/21/19 (Thu) Work Session - Law Enforcement Needs meeting

 
Su M Tu W Th F Sa

1 2 March
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 03/04/19 (Mon) TENTATIVE-WORK SESSION CC GOALS meeting
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 03/05/19 (Tue) Plannng Commission Regular Meeting meeting
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 03/10/19 (Sun) Daylight Saving (move clocks ahead 1 hour) event
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 03/12/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
31 03/19/19 (Tue) Library Board Meeting meeting

Su M Tu W Th F Sa April
1 2 3 4 5 6 04/02/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 04/08/19 (Mon) Cemetery Committee Meeting meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 04/09/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 04/15/19 (Mon) SEI Filing Deadline - Ethics Comission Filing deadline
28 29 30 31 04/16/19 (Tues) TENTATIVE - WORK SESSION -TRANSPORATholiday

04/16/19 (Tues) Library Board Meeting meeting

May
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 05/07/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

1 2 3 4 05/14/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 05/21/19 (Tue) Budget Committee Meeting 21st, 22nd meeting
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 05/27/19 (Mon) Memorial Day - City Hall is Closed holiday
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 05/21/19 (Tue) Library Board Meeting meeting
26 27 28 29 30 31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa June
1 06/04/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 06/11/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting (moved to 18th) meeting
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 06/10/19 (Mon) Cemetery Committee Meeting meeting
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 06/16/19 (Sun) Father's Day holiday
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 06/18/19 (Tues Library Board Meeting meeting
30

January 2019

Yearly Schedule of Events

February 2019

March 2019

April 2019

CITY OF WILLAMNA CITY COUNCIL 

May 2019

June 2019

77

77


	1. 2019.03.12.CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
	1.a.CONSENT AGENDA
	2. 01-31-19 Check Register
	3. 01-31-19 Financial Statements
	4. Minutes February 12, 2018 City Council Meeting.edited
	5.b.Library Parking Lot Lease_02.12.2019
	5.REGULAR AGENDA
	6.Library Parking Lot Lease (00656303-2xB8084)
	7. Partnership with the Polk County Cemetery Savers
	1. The City Council received a proposal from Lloyd Collins with the Polk County Cemetery Savers to join with them in a partnership to clean and repair the Willamina Historic Cemetery headstones and markers.
	2. The Polk County Cemetery Savers will provide the expertise and specialized cleaning fluids, and the City of Willamina will supply  8 to 10 dedicated volunteers, two or three yards of crushed rock, a portable toilet for the duration of work (about 1...
	3. If approved by the City Council, the work is scheduled to begin July 27, 2019.

	8. Cemetery Vacancy Appointments
	2. Pursuant to the Willamina Code of Ordinances, Title lll, Chapter 31, §31.42 (A) The Committee shall consist of up to seven voting members appointed by the Mayor;

	8.a.Cementary Applications
	20. Crime Stats by City
	21.2019 yearly_schedule_of_events
	Schedule
	Help
	©




